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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888-908-6609
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HELEN E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON

DIRECTOR

April 27, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) to enter into a sole source contract with Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC #177195-8007), 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH 03570 in the
amount of $ 19,728.00, for the provision of Guardianship Services effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval for the period beginning July 1,2023 through June 30,2026, with the option to renew for
one additional period of up to three years, subject to Governor and Executive Council approval.
100% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-82340000-101-500729
for Fiscal Year(s) 2024,2025, and 2026, upon the continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget(s) with the authority to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Irri-County Community Action Program

Account Description FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Total

02^6-46-465010-82340000-101 -500729 Guardianship Services $6,588.00 $6,570.00 $6,570.00 $19,728.00

Total Contract Amount $19,728.00

EXPLANATION

The NHDOC is seeking to enter into a sole source contract with the Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (TCC) for the provision of guardianship and protective services. In March, 2018 RFP
NHDOC 18-04-GFMED resulted with TCC as the only respondent to the solicitation for guardianship and
protective services to the residents in the northern region. TCC is a single source agency in the Northern
tier and has been providing Guardianship Services to the NHDOC since 1997.

Guardianship services are to safeguard the liberty and wellbeing of persons who because of functional
limitations have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to provide
for personal needs, food, clothing, shelter, healthcare, safety, or an inability to manage their property or
financial affairs on their own.

Promoting Public Safety with Respect, Professionalism, Dedication and Courage as One Team
HI



Guardianship and protective services under this contract are to be provided to persons at risk of harm to
person or estate whom the State of New Hampshire has responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 21-
H:8.

Respectfully Submitted,

'4*

i. Hanks

Commissioner

Promoting P(d)ltc Safety with Respect, Professionalism, Dedication and Courage as One Team
[2]



FOVM NUMBER P-3T(Taiion 2/S/2023)

Noricc Thbigitemeot SDdaUoflbetl8dm*nliibiIlbecDa»epttbBc6pooiubmliriontoOovemor«iid
ExeodlveOoiniefl (br cpprovaL Any tofbnsttiaa tta'li'privi^ uatfidaiuUl or raost
be cfecfty MeotHi^ lb (te igaicy «nd «(iced to fa writing fvfcr to tigpt^ ̂  pontra^

AGRBBMENT

Ibe Stite ofNew Hsnipsfcbo end Ote Ooittivctor bcnlQr mtittiUy B &Uowf:

< GENERAL PROVISION

L  IDENTIFICATtON:
f .l SWeAgeoQfNBBe

NH Dqwtineui'of CwiecUoni

Slate A^enqr Addm

P.6.Bcot;l806
CooooriNH 03302

IJ OontmctorName

TH-Coinny CciOKnuniQr Actioa Ftosnm, lac
(Trt-ComxQrCAP)

141 Coning Addreo

30 Exdxaose Street
BeribwNH.03S70

IJ Qjuliatfui Ftwoe
- -

nUfnOtf

6Q^7S>^i Bxt.200

14' Accoont Unit md dm

0246-4646501042340000-
101-500729

1.7 Coaqrfedon Dale

Jane 30,2026

IJ Price Urn halloa

sip.moo

1.9 'GoatrecttnfOfRcerfiDr Stile Agenor

PttbUMiBii

ItIO State AsawyTeleiibaaeNamber
603471^

D«te:

1.12 NammdTfdeofCostnHtorSlsnetmy

Jeanne RddQird

Chief Bxecotive OfRca

I.U

1n<

I;14 None nd Tide ofSUB Agency SigBB^
B  ̂ e-^ ̂  ̂

Rd® 0»'EvBE^Ba mQmBXUBIOD^b

1.15 Apptoval by flieKH. Depptnent ofAdmlntawdoa^ PhriiioD ofPenouucl Qf^i^ipnnbl^

By: Director,Ok

1.16 Ai^irovaltydie AttoroayGeoenlCPo

By.

Strtrittrwiand FiriWTt1nn),(y<t^^

r/?/io3,3
1.17 AnirevdVM OovenMr and Executive Coandl. (if4npttai6lc)

0^ Eon omsber. OftCMoetbgDatK

PaiBBldfd
CealiBCtatilnlliafal,

DalBUjiriJ?>



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency tdenlified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 C^Contractor**)
to petform, and the Contractor shall perfonn, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more panicularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is iocoiporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATBCOMPtETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable.,
(his Agreement, and all (Migations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no sudi apixoval is itqubed, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on (he date dre
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as diown h) block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3^ Ifthe Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, ail Services perftmned the Contractor prior to the
EfTe^ve Date shall be performed at the sole ridt of(be Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreeroeot does not become effective the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Slices performed.
3 J Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
ail obligations ofthe State hereunder, inchiding, without limitation,
the continuance of pi^ents hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability end continued appropriation of funds. In no event diall
the State be liable for any p^ents hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In dte event of a reduction or
termination ofappropriated fimds by any state or federal l^blatlve
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the apprqniatlm or avattability of funding for this Agreement and
the Sc<q)e for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State riiall have the rî  to witbbdd payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the to reduce or
terminate (be Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving (be Contractor notice of such reduction or teiminatioD. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identifted and more particuMy described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorpmated herein by laference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in (bb Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereurtder, the Price Limitation set forth in blodc 1.8. The
payment Ity the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature mcurred by the Contractor in the p^ontuurce

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

SJ The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's Itabiltty under thb Agreement ritall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees (hat it has an adeqtiate remedy at law for any breach of thb
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equhable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities whidi impose any (4>lisation or duty upon die
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rî ts and equal
employment <^iportunity laws and the Governor's order on Reflect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 202(K0]. In
addition, if thb Agreement b funded in any part by monies of (he
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive ord^ rules, relations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the IMited States bsue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
62 During the term of tfib Agr^ent, the Contractor riiall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take afffamative
action to prevent such dbcrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comfdy with these nondbcrimination requirements.
6J No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or Its
rqiresentatives In connection whh thb Agreement have or shall be
made whi^ have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquieroence in extortion, kidcbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means ofobtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with thb Agreement and
all rules, relations and orders pertaming to the covenants, terms
and conditions of thb Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The ContraAor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and riiall be properly licensed otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to thb
Agreement
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8. EVENT OP DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor ̂ 1 constitute an event of default bereunder C^vent

of Default**):
8.1.1 failure to perform tbe Services sattsftctorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required bereunder, end/or
8.1J feilure to perform any odter covenant, tern or condhkm of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specificstion of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and ifthe Event ofDe^It is not tim^
cured, terminate thb Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of terminatioa;
822 give the Contractor & written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ad payments to be made under thb
Agreement end ordering that the porUon ofthe contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State detmtnes that
the Contractor has cured die Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2J give the Contractor a written notice specifying (he Event of
Default and set offagainst any other obligations the State owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; an^or
8.2.4 give the CMtiactor a written notice speci^ng the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equify, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nohrithstandlng paiagiaph 8, (he State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State b exercising Its option to terminate the Agreement
9.2 In the event ofaneariy termination ofthb Agreement for any
reason other than the completioo of (be Services, the Cootiactor
shall, at the State*s dbcretion, daGver to (be Contracring Officer,
not later than fifteen (IS) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (Tcnnmatica Report") describing in detail
all Services perform^ and the contract price earned, to and
induding (he dale of terminatioa. In addition, at the St8te*$
discration, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (IS) calendar days
of notice of early terminarion, develop end submit to (he State a
transhioD plan for Services under the Agrtement

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in thb Agreement, the word **Property** shall mean
all data, infonnation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or devek^ by laasoo of; thb
Agraemcnt, irKluding. bm not limited lo, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rqiFoductkms, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, pliers, and documeitts, all whether finished or
unfini^ed.

102 All data and any Property which has been received from (he
State, or pordtased with funds provided for (hat purpose under thb
Agreement, shall be the property ofthe State, and shall be returned
to the State iqwn demand or upon terroinailoo of thb Agreement
for any reason.
lOJ Disclosure of data, infonnation and other records shall be
governed by NJi RSA chapter 9I>A and/or other applicable law.
Dbdosure requires prior written approval of fte State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance ofthb Agreement the Contractor b in all respects an
independent contractor, and b neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractw^ nor any ofits officers, employees,
agenu or members shall have uitborify to bind the State or receive
any benents, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by (he State to its emi^oyees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
(2.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(IS) calendar days before any proposed assignnsent, delegstioa, or
odiCT transfer of any interest b thb Agreement No s^
assignment, delegation, or other transfier shall be effective widwnt
the writteo consent of the State.

122 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment "Change of Control** means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transactHm or series of related transactions m
whid) a third parly, together with its affiliates, becomes (he direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of dre voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of(be
Contractor, or (b) the sale ofaf] or substantially all of the assets of
(he Contractor.

I2J None of (he Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent ofthe Stale.
12.4 The State b entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by toy provbrons
contamed m a subcontract or an assignment agreement to wtiicb it
boot a party.

13. INDEMNinCATION. The Contractor shall indenmify,
defend, and hold harmless die State, its officers, and empko^
from and against all actions, claims, damages, denunds,
judgments, fbes, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, bchtdrng,
%vithout Umrtstion, reasonable attorneys* fees, arising out of or
relating to thb Agreement directly or ir^irecdyarbh^ from death,
persona] bjury, pioperfy damage, intdlectual property
mfnngement, or other claims asserted against the State, its offioers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of n^^ence,
reckletf or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, Hs
employees, agents, or subcontiacton. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Corrtractor arising onder thb
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nodimg hoem
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of dre State's
sovereign immunify, which immunity b hereby reserved to die
State. Thb covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termmatioD
ofthb Agreement
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14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contntdor shall, al its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to dMain and maintain in force, the following
insutance:

14.1.1 conunercial genoal lidriliQr insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts ofnot less than
S 1,000,000 per occurrence a^ S2,000,000 aggr^ate or excess;
and

14.1.2 ̂ ecial cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
809^ of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampdiire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampdtire.
143 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified m block 1.9, or any successor, a cettificale(s) of
insurance for all htsuxance required under this Agreement At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certifkatefs) of insurance for all reoewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement The ccrtiEcBte(s) of
insurance and ai^ itoewals thereof ̂ 11 be attached and are
incorporated herein reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this i^reement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in complianoe wiA or exenq)! from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA ciuqrter 28I-A CWoHun'
Ccmperuation
153 To the extent the Contractor is subject to (he requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281'A, Contractor shaO maintain, and icqutre
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Woticers* Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this AgitemenL The
Contracror shall furnish the Contracting OfTtcer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in NJI. RSA chapter 28I-A and any aj4>Ucable
renewals) thereof; wfakb shall be attached and ore bicoiiporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
ofany Workers* Compensation premiums or for any olher clairo or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which cni^t arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers* Compensation laws in connection with the
perfoiroance of the Services under this AgreemenL

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto end only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor end Executive Council of the State of
New Hampriiire unless no such aj^rroval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and constroed
in accordance with foe laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreeinent b foe wording chosen by foe
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in firvor ofany party.
193 Any actions arising out of thb Agreement, including the
breach or allied breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained to the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire wtuch shall
have exchistve jurisdiction focreof.

20. CONFUCriNG TERMS. In foe event of a conflict between
the terms of fob P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion ofthb Agreement including any attachmenb thereto,
foe terns of the P-37 (as modified to EXHIBIT A) shall control

21. THIRD PARTIES. Thb Agreement b being entered inlo for
the sole benefit ofthe parties hereto, and nofotogberein, express or
implied, b intended to or win confer any l^al or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature qxm any olher person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained thereto shall in
no way be held to explaro, modify, amplify or aid to the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of fob
Agreement

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in foe attadted EXHIBIT A are incorporated
hereto reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at hs own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such ftnther actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provbions of fob Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated herd^.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights 25. SEVERABILTTY. In foe event any of the pr^ons of fob
with respect to any single or continuing breach of thb Agreement Agreement are held by a court of conqretent jurbdiction to be
diall not act as a waiver ofthe right of the State to later enforce any contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provbions of
such rî its or to enforce any other or any subsequent breadi. fob Agiecmcnt will remain to foil force and effed.

17. NOTICE. Anynoticebyapartyhcretototheotbcrpartyshall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may bo
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of executed to a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailing by certified num postage prepaid, in a United States Post deemed an or^tnai, constitutes the entire agreement ^
OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses given to blocks 1.2 understanding between foe parties, and supcisedes all prior
and 1.4, hereto. agreements end understandings wifo le&pect to the subject matter

hereof.
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Guardianship Services
Tri-County Community Action I^grem, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

SO ExAange Street
Berim,NH03S70

This Agreement is between the Slate of New Hampshire, acting by and through the STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ("State" or "Dcpgrtment" or "NHDOCn. 105
Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301 and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc^ (VC #177195-
B007) r*Contractoi^. a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation, 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570.

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed for the Contractor to provide Guardianship
Services for the NH Department of Corrections.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in (he Agreemem and set forth ber^ the parties hereto agree as follows:

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. SecdoD 14. Insurance (P-37, v. 2t23t2fSlS)
*To modify the Form P-37, General Provisions, Section 14. Insurazxe, paragraph 143, by changing
the second to la^ sentence of the clause to read: "Cancellation notice by the Insurer to the Certificate
Holder will be ddivered in accordance with the policy provisions."

EXHiBrrB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Purpose
To provide Guardiandiip Services for indtviduals, herein afier known as "persons,"
"reddeots/patients/non-adjudicated," or "wards," to saf^pard the liberty and well-being of persons
who, because of furKtional limitations, have suffered, are suffermg, or are likely to suffer substantial
harm due to an inability to provide for personal needs for health care, safety or an inability to manage
dieir property or finanrtwi affairs. Th^ individuals may be mentally ill, develcpmentally cfisaUed,
elderly and/or dironicalty flL Guardianship services will be provided to persons at risk of harm or
estate whom the Stale has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA-21-H:8, Department of
Corrections. Guardianship Services he provided in aiQr and all of the New Hampdiiire Probate
Court jurisdictions and based on a cost per person per day rate end accepted from associations
pursuant to Stqutme Court qpioval.

2. Terms of Contract
This Contract is to be effective July 1,2023 through June 30,2026 with an option to renew for one
additional period ofup to 3-years, only after the ̂ roval ofthe Commissioner ofthe NH Dqxutment
of directions and the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Terms of CUntract

3.1. The Contractor proWde Guardianship Services for the patient population that are under
the Department's custodial care from the following frcility listed in ̂  table, bdow:

Proaetbc PobOc SafeQr with lUtpcd, Pfofarfooaflun, Dcdkatlea osd Cmnae u Ooe T«ud

State ̂ NH,Detmttmaa*fCmttthns CtmOamhtp Seni^
OMstemifidnaeetAFaraakSenUet PtfelofM



Guardianship Sendees

Tri-Couaty Community Action Program, /ffc. (THrCounty CAP)
SO Exchange Street
BerUn,m0SS70

Table: B-1

Northern Region - Northern NH Correctioaal Fadltty

Northern NH Correctional Facility (NCn I 138 East Milan Road I Berlin. NH 03570

32, The requested services shall be provided by the Contractor to provide continued services to
the residents^tients/tton^judicated ofthe NH Department ofCorrection even in the evori
that their geographic location changes to an alternative &cility of the Dq>artmeat,

4. Bacl^^ronnd
Not all residents^patients/noiwidjudicated under the custody of the NH Department of Correcuons
have the ability to make informed decisions, dierefore a pi^lic guardian may need to be q)pointed
over the rcsident^patient only or may be over the resident/paticnl and estate. This is detennined based
upon the needs of the proposed ward, the request of the guardian, and a judgement of the court

Although many ofthese resideots/patients/non-adjudicated do' not have an estate for a public guardian
to manage finmdal assets, they do meet the inc^radtated or indigent standards that requires the need
ofpublic guardian services. A growing number ofresidenls/patients/non^udicsted who need such
services have no funily willing or able to serve as guardians. Therefore, to help address this need,
the NH Department of Corrections will require guardianship services to be available to the
residents/patients/non-adjudicated rqiresented by guardianship slots, v

5. Current Gnardian Slots

The current average number of guardianship slots needed for the NH Dqutitmenl of Corrections is
two. The NH Department of Corrections anticipates the ne^ to provide one additional
guardianship slot for year one two and three of the original term of the contract and for year
four, five and six of the optional renewal contract periods. This is based on the mimber of
ronpnitrnwits estimated for the Sexually Violent Predator Act, effective January 1, 2007, and the
increasing number ofaging residents and patients with physical, mental, and behavioral issues.

6. Proposed Guardian ̂ots
It is expected that the NH Department of Corrections will require additional guardianship slots above
the current status of two to compensate frn- longer seirtec^ associated with RSA 135-E and cur
inoeasingdironically mentally ill and aging popt^tiorL'

FY24

7/01/23-6/30/24

FV2S

7/01/24-6/3025

FY26

7/01/25-6/30/26

FV27

7/01/26-6/3027

Fy28

7/0127-62028

FY29

7/D128-6/3029

SloU:3 Slots: 3 Slots: 3 ■ •. ' Sbts:3 Slots: 3 Slots: 3

7. Provision of GnanUanshlp Services '
7.1. The ftiaii provide guardianslup sendees to persons at risk of harm or estate whom

the State has responsibility to saf^tMrd pursuant to RSA 13S-C:6Q^ Guardianship. 17I-A:10,
Services for the Develoomentflllv Disabled and 13S-F.. Involuntary Civil Comnutment.

72. The Contractor shall provide guardiansb^ services to include those actions that are necessary
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Guardianship Services
Tri-Caunty Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
Bertin,NH 03570

Ift cnrry nirt the Artigfi preecnbed by RSA 464-A. Guardians and Conservators, and RSA 547-
B, Public Guardianship and Protection Program, indudtng af^iiitments as guardian, co-
guardian, conservator or (enqrarary guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward.

7.3. The Coniiactor shall provide guardianship services to include sufficient numbers of staff to
adequately cany out, for all restdents/patients^on-adjiuhcated, all duties required 1^ statute,
letters of authority and the standards set forth in this Contract

7.4. The Contractor shall not provide services to any resident/patient under aiQr Contract that
result 6om this Contract without prior written rqiproval oftheNU Dqiaitment ofCorrections.

IS. The Contractor shall provide services to all residects/patients/non-adjudicated approved for
services by the NH Department of Corrections. If guardianship services are assmsed as
inaiqiropriat^ referrals shall be made to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc.,
New Hampdnre Legal Assistance, or other attorneys so that an adzninistjative appeal or other
aiyropriatc legal actioas can be taken on bdialf of the readents/patients^ion-adjudicated.
R^errals of persons for guardianship services from the Secure Psychiatric Unit and prison
&ciltties shall be made throu^ the NH Dqnitment ofCorrections, ndiidi shall review each
referral to ensure compliance with the princ^les contained in RSA 464-A.

7.6. Providing guaidianriup services to residents/patientsfrmo^judicated, the Contractor shall
adhere to the "Code of Ethics for GuantiansT and the "Guardianship Standards of
Practice." Both documents are available through the National Cuardiandup Association,
Inc. at www.guardianshiD.org (The Department acknowledges that the Standards on monthly
visits with wards are and that quartedy or more frequent visits as required 1^
individual canrrmtwires is an acceptable practice).

7.7. In providing guardianship and protection services to persons, the Contractor riiatl sedc the
TnaYirmnn degite of restiictive form of intervention consistent whh the preservatioo of the
dvil rights and Ubeities of the person serviced and with l^al reqxmsibilities. The
Contractor, with the assistance of the State, continually shall review and assess the status of
all persons served and shall sedc less restrictive forms of intervention v^tere feasiUe and
appropriated. In any actions brought in Probate Court to limit or otherwise reduce Che scope
of a guardianship over a person served, the State agrees that it is necessary to present the
State's position on the action proposed.

7.8. The Stale recognizes (bat (he Contractor has responsibUities as an tndqiendent dectskm-
capacity wifri rc^wct to tbc pctsons to bc scTVcd apd thc dccisions

to be made on bdialf of such persons shall ix)t be directed or influenced by the State by any
action under (his Agreement

7.9. No "direct services" be provided to wards (I^A 547-B: 6 B). Direct services include
psycfaothei^iy, case management, tran^Kirtation, financial aid, or other social services
available throu^ the Department or other govemmeolal or.noiqniofit ageodes.

7.10. Complaints received by tbe NH Dquulment of Corrtctions in reference to (he services
provided under (he Contract will be refened to (he Contractor for investigation. Results will
be provided to the Director of Medical & Forensic Services of the NH Department of
Corrections in writing within thirty (30) days concenimg the results of the investigation. A
report of all written conqilaints filed against tltt Contractor shall explain how each such
complainl was resolved.
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Guardianship Services
Tri-County Cemmuniiy Action Program, Inc, (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
BerUn,m 03570

8. Provision of Guardianship Responsibilities
The foUowing is a general listing of functions to be provided by the ContiBctor for individuals so
named by the Probate Couit as wards of a Contractor. This listing and description are not intended
to restate existing rules and regulations already in place, but rather its purpose is to clarify the
relationship of the Contractor with respect to its wards who need and are receiving services in the
Secure Psychiatric Unit and prison facilities. The functions that shall be performed include:
8.1. Making decasions r^arding the [dacement of the individual ward, utilizing the standards of

least restrictive environment and the best interests of the individual ward.
8.2. Ensuring that all legally necessary stqrs are taken to enable an individual ward to receive

comprdreosive evaluations and comprehensive treatment and services.
83. Advocating for ̂  requesting ai^vopriate services for the individual ward utilizing the

individual service/treatment planning process following establiriied NH Dqnrimeiit of
Conrectioos standards and law.

8.4. Being able to give or trithhold consent to proposed medical care.
83. Being available to give or withhold conseot, where such is l^ally necessary, for significant

clinical or I^al treatment or services.
8.6. Ensuring that ward's civil rights are protected within the context of the decision the guardian

is making on bdudf of a ward and refiaining from unwarranted intnisioa into the life of a
ward,

8.7. Assuming re^ronsibility for any and all other duties as are stated in RSA464-A or as required
by the Probate Court.

8.8. All the responsibilities referenced above are contii^ent t^Km the actual authority gramed to
each indhridual court order specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each
individual.

8.9. Each public guardian has an affirmative obligation to become as familiar as possible with his
or her ward. Beyoitd (he personal visits with a ward and odier important and significant
people in a ward's life, this obligation can also be met through close interaction widi a ward's
case managericase counselor or other designated NH Dqrartnient of Corrections personnd
udio share a req>onsibi!ity for providing for the needs of the individual.

8.10. Accqrt all guardianship service cases referred by the NH Department of Corrections. The
NH OqMriment of Corrections make every attenqn to obtain a Release of Information
form fiom the prqxssed ward and riiare all information obtained about the cUect with the
Contractor except where prcdiibitedfiomdoir^ so by law. To the extent possible, be involved
in the screening process (or guardianship and protection cases. If protecUan services are

as inappropriate, refenals wQl marte to the New Hampshire Disabilities
Center, Inc., New Hampshire Legal Assistance, or other attorneys so that and administrative
appeal or other appropriate l^al action can be taken on behalf of the individual ward.

8.11. Agrees to serve file cuirect total persons recdving guardianship and protection services plus
any new persons referred. While the NH Department of Corr^ons shall provi^ a
Contractor letter of approval for each new case assigned, the Contractor may not bill for
services untO fiie CoxUractor is actually rqipointed as guardian a Probate Court; and

8.12. Tn f nKrwe, gnHwtiatw must he kepi
aware of the fimts or drcumstances which may impact iq>on decisions. In order to make
infonned decisions on behalf of their ward, the public guardians should, to the extent
possible, continually mumtain significant and ippn^aiate contact whh their ward so to assure
that their efforts best reflect the personal preferences, value system and desires of the ward.
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Guardianship Sendees
Tri-Couttty Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 EjKhange Street
Berim,NH 03570

The guanlians must seek out mfonnation so thai they are fully aware of all risks and benefits
of any proposed decision, as well as any alternative that may exist.

9. Administrative Rules, Policies, Regubtions and Policy and Procedure Directives
Contractor shall conqdy with any applicable NH Department of Corrections Administrative Rules.
Policies, Regulations and Policy and Procedure Directives (PPD*8) to include but not limited to
PPD 371 (formcriy 5.08): Staff Personal Property PermittedIn and Restricted from Pipon Facilities.
Additional information can be located as a sqnuate link:
h»pt//www.nbfQv/nhdoc/business/rfp bidding toolsJrtm.

10. Protected Heattfi Infonnation (PHI)
Contractor shall safeguard any and all PHI according to the terms of the Health Information
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and
Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and
amendments.

In perfoimiog its nMigifinnK under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access to information of
the patients, confidflitifll information or Patient Healdi Information (PHI). The Contractcr
ghflii not use information developed or obtained during the petformance oC or acquired or developed
by reason of the Ckmtiact, except as is directly connected to and necessary for the Contractor's
performance under the Contract.

The extractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of and to protect fiom unauthorized use,
disclosure, publication, reproduction, and all informatioo ofthe patieol that becomes available to the
Contractor in connection with its peifonnanoe under the Contract. In the event of unauthorized use
of or disdosuie of the patient's information, the Contractor diall inunediatdy notify the NH
Dqurtmeot ofCknrections.

All statistical, personnel and/or technical data siqrptied by NH Dqrartment of Corrections
to the (Contractor axe corifideotial. The Contractor is reqidred to use reasonable care to protect the
confidentiality of sudi data. Any use, sale or offering of this data in any form by the Contractor, or
any individual or entity in the (Contractor's charge or employ, will be considered a violation of this
Contract, and may result in contract tennination. In addition, sudi conduct may be reported to the
State Attorney CoieTal for possible criminal prosecution.

Contractor acknowledges that Correctional Institutions and other custodial bcUities under HlPAA's
Privacy Role, covered entities may disclose the protected health information (PHI) of a person to the
oofrectional or other "custodial" facility that has him/her in lawful custody.. Purposes include:
•  Provision cfbealthcare to the individtial:
• The health and safety ofother people incarcerated; .
•  The health and safety of officers or other employees of the correctional institutioa, or persons

involved in transporting people under dqsaitmental custotfy; or
• Other activities necessary to the "maintenance of safety, security, and good order" of such

institutions.
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Guardianship Serydces
Tri-Gounty Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
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Contctional facilities may use PHI for all the purposes for which it can be disclosed. Examples if:
• You present an immediate danger to yoursdf or others.
• You disclose information leading to a su^cion that a child, the elderly, or disabled is in danger

ofabuse or neglect The appropriate agency must be notified.
• You disclose information relating to a threat to the security of the institution.
• Mental Health staff are presented with a court order.

An individual is no longer a person under Dqrartmental custody when released on parole, probation,
siq>ervised release or otherwise is no longer in lawful custody.

11. Prison Rape EUmloatioo Act (PREA) of 2003
Contractor shall comply with the Prison Rape Elimination Act 0*REA) of 2W)3 (Federal Law 42
U.S.C.15601 ct. seq.X with all applicable Federal PREA standards, and with all State polides and
standards related to PREA for preventing, detecting, monitoring, investigating, and eradicating any
form of sexual abuse within fadlitics/prograins/oCBces owned, operated, or contracted. Contractor
acknowledges that, in addition to self-monitoring requirements, the State will conduct compliance
monitoring of PREA standards, which may require an outside indqreodent audit. Additional
infoimation can be located as a separate link:
|iHp!y/www.nh.gov/nhdocflwsiiiessfrfiQ bidding toolsJrtm.

12. Change of Ownership
In the event that the Conlracior should change ownership for any reason whatsoever, the NH
Department of Corrections shall have the option ofcontinumg under the Contract with the Contractor
or its successors or assigns for the full remaining term of the Contract, continuing under the Contract
with the Contractor or, its successors or, assigns for such period of time as determined necessary by
the NH Department of Corrections, or tenninating the Contract

13. Contractor Designated Ualsoo
Contractor ?1"11 a representative to act as a liaison between the Contractor and the
Department ofCorrectjons for the duration of the Contract and any renewals thereof. Tte CcmttBCtor
ctmii, within five (5) days after the award of the Contract: submit a written identification and
notification to NH Department of Corrections ofthe name, title, address. tcIephoneA fax number, of
its organization afiGiming them as a duly authorized representative to whom all cotrespoodeacc,
official notices and requests related to the Contractor's performance under the Contract will be
directed.

13.1. Any written notice to the Contractor shall be deemed sufficient when dqx»ited m the U.S.
mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the person designated by the Contractor under this
paragraph.

13.2. The Cwitractor have the right to change or substitute the name of the individual
described dbovc as deemed necessary provided that any such dumge is not effective until the
CoramissioDer of (he NH Department of Corrections actually receives notice of this change.

13 Changes to the named liaison by the Connactor must be made in writing and fonvarded to
NH Department ofCorrections, Director ofMedical and Forensic Services, or designee, P.O.
Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302.
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Guardianship Services
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

14. CoDtractor*s Designated Responsf^ities
CoDtrac(or*s designated liaison shall be reqwnsible for
14.1. Representing the Contractor on all matters pertainiiig to the Contract and any renewals

thereof. Such a rqwtscntativc shall be authorized and empowered to represent the Contractor
regarding all aspects of the Contract and aiiy renewals thereof.

14.2. Monitoring the Contractor's compliance whh the terms of the Contract and any renewals
thereof .

143. Receiving and responding to all inquiries and requests made by NH Departm^ of
Corrections in the fiames and format specified by NH DqMitment of Corrections in the
Contract and any renewals thereofi and

14.4. Meeting with rqjrescctatives of NH Dqiaitmeni of Corrections on a periodic or as-needed
basis to resolve issues, «diich may arise.

15. NHDepartmeot of Corrections liaison Responsibilities
NH Dqxaitmcnl of Corrections' Commissioner, or designee, shall act as liaison Utween the
Contractor and the NH Dqiartmcni of Corrections for the duration of the Contract and any renewals
thereof The NHDqartmcntofCorrections reserves the right to cha^ its iqirescntativc. at its sole
discretion, during the term of the Contract, and shall provide the Contractor with written notice of
such change. The NH Department of Corrections representative shall be responsible for
IS.l. Representing the NH Department of Corrections on all matters pertaining to the Contract

The rqjresentative shall be authorized and enqwwered to represent the NH Department of
Corrections r^arxling all afreets ofthe Contract, subject to the qrproval ofthe Governor and
Executive Council ofthe State of New Hampshire, where needed.

153. Monitoring coniqiliance with the tenns of the Contract.
15.3. Responding to all inquiries and requests related to the Contract made by the Contractor, under

the terms and in the timefiames specified by the Contract
15.4. Meeting with the Contractor's rqiresentalivc on a periodic or as-needed basis and resolving

issues, which arise.
153. Informing the Contractor of any discretionary action taken by the NH Department of

Corrections pursuant to the provision of the Contract
15.6. Director of Medical and Forensic Services or designee may order the Contractor to take

specific actions the Depaitment deems medically or administratively a{^priate.

16. Data Analysis and Reporting
16.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Division of Medical and Fbrensic
163. Services, which includes but is not limited to. the total number of residents/patients/non-

adjudicatcd receiving services, month, site, guardian and how many visitsfinteiactions. This
data will end>le on-going analysis by the NH D^)artment of Collections of the most cost-
effective options when considering guardianship services.

163. The Contractor shaU provide a Sample Report that reflects the requirements in section 16.1
above.

16.4. The Contractor shall provide an accurate measure ofcost per person per day expenditures tor
the guardiandiip program and provide this quarterly to the Director of Medical and Forensic
Services.
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Guardianship Services

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-Couniy CAP)
30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH03570

16.5. A Final Repoxt of advantages and disadvantages of how guardianship services are provided
include any other items in the scope of work not covered in eaiiier rqMzts. The Final Rq)ort
is due thirty (30) days after the expiration date of the Contract

16.6. Meetings shall be conducted with the NH Department of Coir^ions and held periodically,
^)on mutual agreement, during the Contract term to review the scope of work, discuss the
cost analyses, o^lain rq}orts. and answer questkms.

16.7. All material developed or acquired by the Contractor, as a result of work under the Contact
shall become the property ofthe State of New Hanqjshire. No material orrcports prqiared
by the Contractor shall be released to the public without the prior written consent of the NH
Dqrartment of Corrections.

16.8. Any reports and/or information requested by the NH Departmcnl of Corrections forwarded
10 NH Departinem of Corrections, Director of Medical and Forensic Services, or designee,
P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302.

16.9. It is the inient of the NH Department of Conections to work with the Contractor so that the
Contractm* can provide ai^ rqx)iting requirements that meets the Dq>artmeiit*s needs.

17* Performance Evaloatioo
NH Dqnrtment of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion monitor and evaluate the Contractor's
compliance widi the Terms and Conations and adherence to the Scope of Services of the Contract
for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof.

18. Performance Assessment

NH Dqnrtment of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion:
18.1. Infonn the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's performance and include

requirements for corrective action.
18.2. Terminate the Contract as permitted by law, iftbeNHDqjartment of Corrections determines

that the Contractor

18.2.1. Does not conqsly with the terms of the Contract
18 77, Haslostorhasbeennotifiedofintentiontolosetheircertificatioii/licensure^wnnits.
1877, The Contractor shall fidly coordinate the perfoimance activities ofthe Contract with

those of the NH Department of Coirectittts. As the work of die Contractor
progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the Contract shall be made
available by the Contractor to the NH Dqiartment of Corrections as requested by the
Dqiartmcnt throughout the effective period of the Contract.

19. Bankrupt^ or Insolveoqr Proceeding Nottficatioa
19.1. Upon filing for any bankraptcy or insolvency proceeding by or against the Contractor,

whether voluntary or involuntary, or upon the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or assignee
for the benefit of creditors, the Contractor must notify the NH Department of Conections
immediately.

19.2. l^Km learning of the actions herein identified, the NH Department of Corrections reserves
the ngfi* at its sole discretion to either cancel the Contract in whole or in part or re-affirm the
Contract in whole or in part.
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30 Exchange Street
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20. Embodiment of the Contract
In the event of a conflict in language between the documents referenced below, the provisions and
requiremeats set forth and/or referenced in the n^otiated document noted in 20.1.1. and 20.12. shall
govern. The NHDqMDtmentofCoirections reserves the righi to claiiiy any contractual relatkmsh^
in writing with the concurrence of the Contractor, and such written clarification shall govern in case
of conflict with the applicable requirements stated in the Form P-37 (v. 2/23/2025) and/or Exhibit A,
B&C

20.1. Order ofPrecedence:

20.1.1. NH Department ofCorrections Contract Agreement Form P-37 (v. 2/23/2023); and
20.1.2. NH Department ofCorrections Exhibit A, BAG.

21. CanceOatioo of Contract

NH Dqiaitment of Corrections may cancel the Contract at uxy time for breach of contractual
obligations by providing flie Contractor with a written notice of such cancellation. Should the NH
Department ofCorrections exercise hs ri^ to cancel the Contract, the cancellation dull become
effective on the date as specified in the Notice of Cancellation sent to the Contractor.
21.1. The NH Department of Corrections reserves that right to terminate the without penalty or

recourse by giving the Contractor a written notice ofsuch terminaticn at least sixty (60) days
prior to file effiective termination date.

21.2. The NH Dqianmeiit of Corrections reserves the right to cancd this Contractor for the
convenience of the State with no penalties by gi^ring the Contractor sixty (60) days* notice
of said canoeilation.

22. Audit Requiremeot
Contractor agrees to conqily with any recommendations arising from periodic audits on the
performance of the Contract, providing that the recommendations do not require unreasonable
hardship, which would normally affect the value of the Contract, fri addition, give the Contractor
prior notice of any on-site visit by the Department's Director of Medical A Forensic Services or its
agentfs) to conhict an audit, ami frirther notiiy the Contractor of ai^ records witch the Director of
Medi^ A Forensic Services or its agents may wid) to review.

23. Notification

NH Department of CctTecttons shall be responsible for notifying the Contractor of ariy policy or
procedural changes affecting the contracted services at least fliitty (30) days before the
iiiq)leaient8tionofsochpolicyorptocedure. The Contractor shall inq)lemeot the changes on the date
specified by the Department

24. InfonnatioD

24.1. Id performing hs obligations under the Contract, the Contractor may gain access to
information of the resideats^patients/DOn^udicatedfoon^judicated residents induding
confidential tnformatioiL The Contractor shall itot use information develcqred or obtained
during the perfonnanoe of, or acquired or developed reason of the Contract, excqrt as is
directly connected to and necessary for the Contractor's performance under the Contract

242. Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of and to protect from unauthorized use,
disclosure, publication, rqnoduction, aird all information of the resideiit^)atieat/non-
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adjudicated residents that becomes available to the Contractor in connection with its
p^ormaoce under the Contract.

24J. In the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of the residents^tieot/non-adjudicated
resident infonnalion, the Contractor shall immediately notify the NH Dq>aitment of
Corrections.

24.4. All material developed or acquired by the Contractor, as a result of woric under the Contract
■gtmn become the property of the State of New Hampriiire. No material or rqxuts prqsaied
by the Contractor fhVi released to the public without the prior written consent of NH
Department of Corrections.

24.5. All financial, statistical, personnel and/or tedmical data stilted by NH Dqjartmem of
Corrections to the Contractor are confidential. The Contractor is reqirired to use reasonable
care to protect the confidentiality of such data. Any use, sale or offering of this data in any
form by the Contractor, or any individual or entify in the Contractor's diaige or enq^r^, will
be considered a violation ofthe contract, and may resuh in contract tenninatioo. Inad^on,
such conduct may be reported to Ite State Attorney General for possible criminal
prosecutioo.

25. Contractor Personnel
25.1. Contractor shall agree that enq)loyees of the Contractor shall perform all services reqtored

by the Contract The Contractor shall guarantee that all personnel providing the services
required by the Contract are qualified to perfmm their assigned tasks.

25.2. The Dq»mnent shall be advised of and appiove in writing at least ten (10) days in advance
of sud) diai^ any permanent or teaqioraiy dianges to or deletions the Contractor's
management, supervisory, or key professional personnel, who directly inqttct the
deliverables to be provided under the Contract.

26. Other Contractnal Docnments Required by the NH Department of Corrections
Form Number P-37 (version 2/23/2023); Certificate of Good Standing (COGS); Certificates of
Authority/Vote (COA/COV); Certificate of Insurance (COl); Administrative Rules, Rules of
Conduct, Confidentialtty of Information Agreements; PREA Acknowledgement Form; Mission
Statement, Recent Audit Financial Statements, Board of Directors/Tiustees eixi Business Address
and Telephone Numbers, List of Personnd, Resumes, and Annual Salary per Position, and ALT-
W9 R^i^tiation be iqiplicable for the requested contracted activities ai^ for the excqjtioD of
the Certificate of Good Standing (COGS), are located as a sqnrate link on the NH Dqartment of
Corrections wd^site: http://www.nh-gov/nhdoc/husiness/rfp bidding tQQls.htin.

27. Special Notes
27.1.1. Notwithstanding the forcing, or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no

event shall dianges to facilities be allowed that modify the **Comple(ion Date" or Price
Limitation" ofthe AgreemenL

27.12. Contractor provide, for the life ofthe Contract and any renewals thereof, the minimum
General Liability coverage to be no less than $1,000,000.00 per each occurrence and
$2,000,000.00 genera] eggr^te.

27.1X Contractor shall name the State of New Hampshire as additkmally insured for the life of the
Contract and any renewals thereof.
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Guardianship Services
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
Beriin^NH 03570

27.1.4. Contractor shall provide, for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof, pnwf of
Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance.

The remainder of thispage is intendonaify blank.
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Guardianship Services

Tri-Coimty C(nniniinify Ac/ion Program, Inc. (Tri-Counf)- CAP)
30 Exchange Streef
Berlin, m 03570

EXHIBIT C

ESTIMATED BUDGET/METHOD OF PAYMENT

1. Estimated Budget (Cost Proposal) - Northern Guardianship Services
1.1. Estimated Budget Schedule, below, to be completed by the Contractor.

Serykic Period by FY"
Cbntracforis Coist per.

. .RcddentTiBtittt/hbb-
. adludicatetl ber/DfiV*'

Maximtuh'Slpts ;
-Provided by
Conthidlor* ' ■ •

TotiUPerFY.

FY24** S6.00 3 $ 6.588.00

FY25 $6.00 "  3 S 6.570.00

FY26 $6.00 3 $ 6.570.00

FY27 $6.00 3 , $ 6.570.00

FY28** S 6.00 3 $ 6.588.00

FY29 S6.00 3 $ 6.570.00

NOTE; ■ * The CoiMraaor shall indicate the cost per day end numba of $lot.«; they can piovidc annually.
•• State Fiscal Year 24 Si 78 are a leap year (366 days).

1.2. Original Conlracl Period Estimated Yearly Costs:

1.2.1. FY 2024** Toial Cost, Year 1: S 6.588.00

1.2.2. FY 2025 Tola! Cost, Year 2: S 6.570.00

1.2.3. FY 2026 Total Cost. Year 3: S 6.g7Q,W

] .2.4. Estimated Total; Original Contract Period SI 9.728.00

1.3. Optional Renewal Conlracl Period Estimated Yearly Costs:

1.3.1. FY 2027 Total Cost. Year 4: S 6.570.00

1.3.2. FY 2028** Total Cost. Year 5: S 6.588.00

1.3.3. 2029 Total Cost, Year 6: S 6.570.00

1.3.4. Estimated Total: Renewal Contract Period SI9.728.00

Proinotlup Pablir .Safety wldi Rc«p«c«. Professionalism, DedlcailcR and Courage as One Team
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Guardianship Servieas

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)
30 Exchange Stnet
Berlin, NH 03570

Mediod of Payment

2.1. The momhly fee for service paynicnt(s) owed to the Contractor shall be made in the following
month in whkfa services were perfonned and shall be based on the contracted cost per person
per day rate. This oost per person per day rate will be extended through the date in which the
client dies or is terminated fivmi services.

2.2. The monthly fee (total due) for services performed shall be calculated as follows:
2.2.1. Multiply^ the number of caseloads (wards) by the number of days served in a

service mo^ by the ward rate; or
2.2.2. Multiplying the ward rate by the number of days served in a service monfli for eadi

listed resident/patient served.
2J. The monthly report shall document the number of residentsApatients/non-

adjudicated on the Contractor's caseload during the service month. The statistics shall
specify the number of persons serviced by type of services, the names of cases added or
closed during the month. Orders fornew guardianship appointments shall be attached to the
statistics as soon as they become available. Residents/patients/non-adjudicated added during
the service TTK-mth for which the prior approval has not been obtained, but for who the
Contractor is seeking reiraburscmcnt, must be formally authorized to receive services before
they are into the authorized payment due for the service month. A brief
ejqtlanation be provided for any client fbr whom services have been terminated.

2.4. The orig^l invoice shall consist ofthe following parts:
2.4.1. Part One: Reimbursement, itemized by the following infonnation:

•  Organization name;

•  Invoice date and number,

•  Bill To address;

•  Service month and contract period;
• Number of caseloads; and
• Total due.

2.4 Part Two: Statisticallnformation, itemized by the following infonnation:
• Names of wards (resldeots/patientsfoon-adjudicated) who received services;
• Names ofwaids added durmg service monrii; and
• Names of wards removed from caseload.

15. Services are to be invoiced monthly commencing thirty (30) days after the start of service.
2.6. Invoices shall be sent to the NH Department of Corrections. Rnandai Services, P.O. Box

1806. Concord, NH 03302, or designec, for approval. The *3iU To** address on the invoice
cKftll be NH Department of Corrections, Financial Services, P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH
03302.

2.7. The NH Department of Corrections may adjust the payment amount identified on a
Contractor's monthly invoice. The NH Department of Conections shall suspend payment to
an invoice if an invoice is not submitted in accordance with the instructions established by
the NH Department of Corrections.

2.8. The Final Report as described in the Scope of Services, Exhibit B, Data Analysis and
Rqmrting, shall aoccnqKmy the firuil invoice of the contract penod.

2.9. Reimbursement for services for persons who have not been screened by the Department will
not be reimbursed under the Contract. In instances where guardianship appointments are
made wiOiout appft)val granted from the Department, reimbursement for guardianship

ProcQotiss PuMk Safety wbb Rctpcct, Profcsriomlitm, Dcdkattso and Caunseai OneTcara
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Guardianship Sendca
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Ejxbange Street
Berlm,NH03570

services may be possible wfaea satisfisctoiy documentation can be presented that sudt
ocoirred, and reasonable efTorts were made to decline such appointments.

Sudi HnnimMitflHnn Bhall be included to an OTginal invoice. If the documentation provided
is satisfisctory, the Depaitineut may make payments for appointments made without approval
as long as wards are persons for whom the State has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to
RSA2I-H:R.

2.10. Payment dull be made to the name and address identified in the Contract as the "Contractor"
unless: (a) the Contractor has authorized a diflereot name and mailing address in writing or
(b) autlKirized a dinbent name and mailing address in an ofGcial State of Hew Hampshire
Contractor R^istiation A]^lication Form; or (c) unless a court of law qiedfies othenvise.
The Contractor shall not invoice federal tax. The State*s tax-exempt ceriificate number is
026000618.

2.11. For contracting purposes, the State*s Fiscal Calendar Year starts on July 1st and ends on June
30"* of the foUowh^ year.

The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.
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Guardianship Services
Tri'County Community Actian Ptvgram, Inc. (Tri-County CAP)

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NB 03570

Glossary of Terms

Various tenns and abbreviations are used within the RFP that may not be famitiar to all readers. This
glossary term and acronym list is an ̂ teiiq)t to he^ make read^ these documents easier and more
understandable.

Term Acronym Descriptioo/Defimtion

Alternate W-9 Form ALTW-9

Govenior and Executive Council G&C

Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act

HIPAA

New Hflmpdiire NH

NH Depaitmenl of Corrections NHDOC

Northern NH Correctional Facility NCF

Policies. Procedures and Directives PPD's

Prison Rape Elimination Act PREA Prison Rape mimination Act of
2003 (PREA) is the first United States
federal law passed dealing with the
sexual assault of misoncrs.

Revised Statutes Annotated

RSA

Fmrns the codified laws of the state
subordinate to the New Hampshire
State Constitutioa

State Fiscal Year FY

Stale of NH Lomt Form Contract P-37

The remainder of this page Is iMentionaUy UanL
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I David M. Scnnlan, Sccreiar>'of Stale of Ihc State of New Hampshire, do hereby ccnify that TKI-COIJNTY COMMUNITY

action program, inc. (TRl-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonproni Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18,1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrelaty of State's ofTlcc have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofllcc is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0006195524

K
%

y
lA.

•w

^3

IN TESTIMONY Wl-iEREOT.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to bc onixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 4ih day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretaiy of State



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

F3ed

DticFiied: 7/31/2020

ERcctiw Due 7/31/3020

BusfaKU ID: i3CQ0

WiDiau M. Gsifncr

SecrdsiyofSuie

BUSINESS NAME TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC (rRl-«)U?irY CAP)

BUSINESS TYPE Domestic NonprofH Corporation

BUSINESS ID: 63020

STATE OF INCORPORATION: New Hampdiire

CURRENT PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS CURRENT MAILING ADDRESS

30 EXCHANGE ST
BERUN,NH, 03570, USA

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH, 03570, USA

PRINCIPAL PURFOSE(S)

NAICSCODE NAICS SUB CODE

OTHER 1 CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION

OFFICER / DIRECTOR INFORMAHON

NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS TITLE

SandpAbtao 30 Escfaanse St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA
Cbatrman ef the Board of

Dlrecton

Acme Barber 30 Cxcbaoge St, Bcrtln, NH, 03570, USA Director

Mldtad Dcwar 30 Excbange St, Bcrfin, NH, 03570, USA Director

KsroUna Brxesowska 30 Excbange St, BetUo, NH, 03570, US A Director

inlle Davis 30 Etcbange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Linda Masimftla 30 Excbange St, Bci1io,NH, 0^98, USA Director

Trida Garrison 38 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Rlchiirtl Mdeod 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA - Director

Jeanne L Robfllard 30 Bxdiai^ St, Bcrlltv NH, 03570, USA Chief Executive Officer

Randan SPilotte 30 Exchange St, Beinn. NH, 03570, USA Chief Fhumdal Officer

1, Che undOTigned, do hereby certify thd the statonenti on this report arc tiM to the best of my information, knowledge and benet

Title-rhkfFinandal OlQctr

Rit«tnM« M<tmi.-Tri-GMnitTCAP.1ne.

Sicnetme Randall PfloCte

Name of Sinner Randall PUotte

THie of Signer CblefFlnaada! Ofllecr

MfiOlBg Address - Owpomion Divisioo. NH Dqwtment of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, NH 03301-4989
niyskal Locatien - State House Annex, 3nl Floor, Room 317,'25 Capitol Street, Concord, NH

Pbene: (603)271.3246 \ Pat: (603)271.32471 Email: coipontt@ios.nh.gov j Website: sos.iih.gov



Certificate of Aotbority 1 (Corporation of LLC- Nonspecific, open-ended)

Corporate Resolotion

c  i .At toorftCVvavf
I, OQAutl V^\OAXQ hereby certify that I am duly elected Clmk/Seueutfy of

Tri-County Communtty Action Program. Inc. . IherebyceitifytbefoUowiagisatntecopyofa
{Name of Corporaiion or LLC)

vote taken at a rorctine of the Board of Direclois^ahaidioldeis, duly called and held _ tAgvA
Odb,(iddiuh)

20 9^^ at which a quorum of the Dhectors/shardmlders were present and voting.
(Year)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, CEO (may list more than orte person) is duly authorized to
(Mime and Tide)

enter into contncts or agreements on behalfof Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. with
{Name of Corporation or LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or dcpaitments and further is authorized to execute any

vducb may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to efiiect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify thai said vote has not been emended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of

the date of the contract to whkh this certificate is attached. 1 further certify that it is understood that the State of

New Han^tshiie will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occtqry the

position(s) and that they have full authority to bind the oorporution. To the extent that there are any limits

on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all

sudi Umitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: ATTEST
Tide)

u



OocuSign Envelope ID: A2B9340D-2A2WO09-Ag84-914D59E2B8E8

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

12FY22 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sign

The Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
takes the following action.

Resolved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte acting as a designee of the
CEO, are herdjy authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into contracts with the Federal
Government, State of New Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed necessary and to execute
any and all documents, agreements and other instruments and amendments, revisions or
modifications thereto, as may be deemed necessary, desirable or appropriate for the corporation;
this authorization being enforced and effective until June 30th, 2023.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on May
31st. 2022.

-DMUSIgMd^

By:

Name: SandyT^^^S^^Fieeatos-

Title: Board Chair

DectiSlgaed

By:
Name: George Sykes
Title: Treasurer



ACC^rf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATEfMMiDOrrYYY}

01A)3/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IMSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certflcBte hddar Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provtelofw or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies inay require an endorsement A statement on
this rnrtificate does not confer riflhts to the certificato holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurarice

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Susan SolDvan

EM. P-,. (603) 669-3218 | (603) MW331
manch.cens^{crosssgency.com

MSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICd

msuRStA Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 16058

INSURE

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc

30 Excharxie Street

Bertin NH 03570

VtSURERB (Sranite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURStC

UiSURBtO

INSURER E

INSURER F -•

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTH) BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMH) ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECTTO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAW, THE IhKURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTH TYPEOTMSURANCC rrTi'liWH POLICY NUKBER

X COMMERCIAL GENSLAL UABUiTY

CLAAISMAOE OCCUR

OENV/WSCREOATE LIMIT APPUESreR:

^ POLICY Sect I IPOLICY LOC

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HREO
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA UAB

0CCESSUAB

3

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NOHOWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAlMS-hWK

RETENTION t
10.000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EUm.OYERS'UABOJTY

ANY PROPRIETORiTWRTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MafMlatory bi NK)
H yos. docribe umiv
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIOHS bMw

rm

0N/A

PHPK2433324

PHPK2433331

PHUB8215S5

KCHS2022000005e (3a.) NK

POUCYEFF
IMMCOIYYYYl

07A}1/2022

07/01/2022

07/01/2022

01/01/2023

POUCYEXP"
IKMIPOiYYYYI

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

07/01/2023

01/01/2024

LOOTS

EACH OCCURRENCE
bMUOeYDRtfRES
PREMaESIEaomwmfrl

MEOEXPIAnyonapWMn)

PERSONAL 4 APY INJURY

GEWERAL AOOREQATE

PWOOUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

ProfessionBl LiaUUty

COMBINED SINGLE UMTT'
lEaaecWfW)

aODAY INJURY (Per person)

BOOLY INJURY {Per pcddcnt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPereedflwttl

EACHOCCURRBICE

AGGREGATE

X
PER
statute

OTH-

ER

EJ-EACH ACCIDENT

Ei- DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

EJ„ DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT

1,000,000

100.000

5,000

1.000X100

3.000X>00

3,000.000

s 1.000.000

9 1.000000

2.000000

2.000000

1.000.000

1.000.000

1.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIORS / LOCATIONS / WEMCLES (ACORD «!. AddWonM Remsrtu Schedule, miy tw etuched If more spece Is rsqiilndj
IJobB: JobTyoe:NHDepaflmenlofCofTecilonsJ _ ^
Slate of New HampsWre. NH OepaftmenI of CorrecUons. is Included as oddiUonal Insured »4th respects to CGL as requlfed by written controct with named
Insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

State of New hiampshire

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCItlBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

NH Department of CorrectloRS

PO Box 1806

Concord

I

NH 03302-1806

AUTHORIZED REPRESEHTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) Ttie ACORD name and logo arc registered martis of ACORD



Nil DKPARI MKNr Ol"CORRIXI'IONS
HF ALTH INSURANnR PORTABILITV AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Hic Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance FoitabiUty and Accountability Act, PubUc Law 104-191 and wilh the
Standard for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, "Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and
"Covered Entity" shall mean the State ofNew Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definttions

a. Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

b. "pHtfl - A ppregfltion" Aall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501. ^
c. "HlTrllth CfOperations" ̂11 havc the same meaning as the term "health care operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164J01.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, PuHic Law 104-
191.

e. "Individuar diall havc the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

f. "Privacy Rule" mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Dqiartmcnt of Health and
Human Services.

g. "Pffltected Health Infonwatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health information"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the infonnation created or received Business Associate from or
on behalf of Covered Entity.

h. "pwpiitwl hv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

i. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

j, shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

k. Other nefmitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45
CFJt Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime.

m TTfte and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

SMeafNM,Dtparmatt^Cen*t^



a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agrcanent.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and SecuriQ' Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Busmess Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggr^ation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is pomitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
thiid party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third par^
to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it
has obtained Imowledgc of such breach.

d. The Busmess Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide servic«
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the ba^
that it is required by law. without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity
to object to the disclosure and to seek appn^iriate relief. If Covered EntiQ/ objects to such disclosute, the
Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies,

& If the Coveted Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be Iround by
additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards:

n\ f>h!teimQn« and Activities of Bariness Aisodatc
a. Busmess Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, m wntog, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, of which It becomes aware, within two (2) busmess days of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incidrat

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health mfbrmation, in
electronic or any other form, that H creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in

with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by the Agreement

c. Business Associate make available aU of its intcraal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of dctcrxnining Covered Entity's compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on foe use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including foe duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided uncte
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary ofthe
Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended busmess associates, ufoo will be

Stau^NH.D^artmtta^Correahtts Pagel^S
Di^pfkUikduadForaakStnUa CoetmclorloMdsr^^rr'



receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business who shall be govemed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for (he purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's coitqiliance with the terms of the Agreement

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within tea (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a recoM about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to re^nd to a request by an individual for an aocoimting of
disciosines ofPHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

L Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such

informalicn as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164 J28.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the reqwnsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entily or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the mdividiial's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) boriness days of tennination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or dwlroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any ciqiies or back-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the Agreement,
to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasiblc, for so long as Business Associate mamtains such PHL If Covered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4\ Obligntiop* of Covered Entity v • vt
a. Covered Entity diall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitalion(8) m ils Notice of Pnvacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent (hat sudi
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

SMeefNH,D«partmm^C0rr€Cthas
Dhishn ̂  Mealed mad Fermie Streets

Costntdor Iidtisl*:



b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI ttiat Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

(5i Termination for Came

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately tcnninatc
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. Ihe Covered Entity may either immediately tenninate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the allied breach within a
ttmcframe ̂ recified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity detennines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible. Covered Entity riiall report the violation to the Secretary.

Mlscellaneows

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All tcnns used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same mepnmg as diose terms in die Privacy and Security Rule, as amended fium time to
time. A reference in die Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit 1. to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. |A^endment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary
to amend the Agreement, fiom time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal
and state law.

c. Data Owner^p. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on bdialfof Covered Entity.

d. InterpietatioD. The parties agree that any ambiguily in the Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Secunty Rule.

c. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
per8on<s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity diail not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms
and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHERK)F, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILnY ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.

^e€fNH,t>€p*ttmatiofComed9m fagt4^S
Dl9U9ae/IU€4kai«aJFaraateStrvica
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NH DEPAR™ENT of CORRECTIONS

ADMINISTTIATIVE RULES

Cor 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of
a) Any substance or item whose possession is unlawful for the person or the general public

possessii^ it including but not limited to;
(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any fireann, simulated firearm* or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target.

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar hems designed to be projected against a
person, animal or target

d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
inffhtHmg piimefs, primer cor^ e}q)Iosive powder or similar items or siinulations of these
items.

e) Ax^ drug item, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in
such quantities that a person would suffer intoxication or illness if the entire available
quantity were ccmsumed alone or in combination with other available substances.

f) Ai^ intoxicating beverage.
g) Sums of mon^ or negotiable instruments in occess of SI 00.00.
h) Lockiricking kits or tools or instruments on piddng lodes, inakmg keys or obtaining

surrqxtitious entry or exit.
i) The following types of items in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehide, but

shall not be contraband stwed in a secured vehide:
(1) knives arrd knife-like weapons, dubs and dub*like weapons,
(2) tobacco, alcdrol, drugs inchuiing prescription drugs unless prior qiproval is

granted in writing by the feciiity Warden/d^gnee, or Director/designee,
(3) maps ofthe prison vidnity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of

the fiidlities, its grounds or its vicinity,
(4) pomognqihy or pictures ofvisitors or pro^)ective visitors undressed,
(5) radios capable ctf monitoring or transmitting on the police band in the possession

of other than law enforcemoit officials,

(6) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the
person to wtmm prt4>eriy issued,

(7) ropes, saws, grappl^ books, fishing line, masks, artifidal beards or mustaches,
cuttii^ wh^s or string rope or line impregnated with cutting material or similar
Hems to facilitate escapes,

(8) balloons, condoms, fidse^ttomed containers or other containers uhich could
fadlitate transfer ofcontraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transport, introduction, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the commissioner of
coirections orhisdesignee is prohibited under the provision ofRSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or properly on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute implied consent to search for contraband. In such
cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual seaidies in situations where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hanq)shirc conceming search, sdzure and arrest.

b) All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed.
perronnel shall dieck to insure that v^cles are locked and shall visually inq>cct

the plain view interior of the v^cles. Vehicles discovered unlocked shall be searched to
insure that no contraband is present. Contraband discovered during searches shall be

fOT evidence, as contraband discovered during plain view inspections.

c) Ail persons entering the fiuriKties to visit with residents or stafC or to pcrfonn services at the
&dlities or to tour the facilities diall be subject to having their persons checked All items
and clothing carried into the institution shall be seardied for contraband.

JeanneRobill^CEO

Name ^ St^Mure ^ Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIQNS

RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. Fngagitig in Btty of thc following activities with persons under dq>aitmental control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, including correspondence, other than the performance of your services
for which you have been contracted.

b. Giving or selling ofanything
c. Accepting or buying anything

2. Any person providii^ contract services who is found to be under the influence of intoxicants or dn^s
will be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to NH Dqiaitment
of Conections pn^Msty.

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Han^>shire code of
Administrative Rules, Pait COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New
Hampshire and may result in l^al action under RSA d22:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the instructions of
the j^-nrtjng staff or rq)Oft immediatdy to the closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH D^artment of Corrections are designed for the safety of
the staf^ visitors and residents, the security of tte facility and an orderly flow of necessary movement
and activities. If unsure of ai^ policy and procedure, ask for immediate assistance from a staff
member.

6. Harassment and discrimination directed toward ai^ne based on sex, race, creed, color, national
origin or age are iUegal under federal end state laws and will not be tolerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to removal for failing to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you are responsible to the fridtity administrator, and by your
signature t^ow, agree to abide by all the rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the NH
Dqiaitment of Correctioiis and the State ofNew Hampshire.

8. In lieu of Contracted staff participating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor through the
Commissiotter or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor Co
supplement this requirement and ̂ ropriatc orient Vendor staff to the rules, r^nlations, policies and
procedures of the Department of Cotrections and the State of New Hamp^iire.

JeanneRobillard,CEO k Ml
Name SignatmbT \ Date



NH nFPARTMKNT OF CORRECTIONS

CONFIDEJmALrrY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I uoderstand and agree that all employed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all
rules, regulations and laws of the State of New Hampdiire and the NH Department of Corrections diat
relate to the confidentiality of records and all other privileged infonnation.

I further agree that all employed by or subcontracted through the organization I represent are not to
rficriKg any crnifidential or privileged information with family, fiiends or any posons not
professionally involved with this NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or residents of the NH
Department of corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH Department of Corrections* employ
approaches any of the organization's employees or subcontractors and requests information, the
stafE/employecs of the organization I represent will immediately contact their supervisor, noti^' the
NH Department of Corrections, and file an incident report or statement r^rt with the appropriate
NH D^aitment of Corrections representative.

Any violation of the above may result in immediate termination of any and all contractual obligations.

Jeanne Robillard, CEO NsriiMwry' \/

Name Signa^i^ ^ Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION
P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03302-1806
603-271-5610 FAX: 888 S08-6G09

TDD ACCESS: 1-800-735-2984
www.nb.BOv/shdoc

HELEN E. HANKS

COMMISSIONER

JONATHAN K. HANSON
DIRECTOR

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

Die Prison Rape EUmination Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule August 2012) is a federal law
established to address the dimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
correctional systems and detention facilittes. This Act applies to all correctional fedlities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile fadlilies and cosamunhy corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve
the following conduct:
• Resident-on-resident sexual assault

• Resident-on-ie«deiit abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
infonnation gathering. The NH Dqiartment of Conectioiis has zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victiins. Due to this recognition and
adheremce to the fedaal Prison Rape Himination Act (PREA) of2003. the NH Dqiartment of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:
•  Contractor/subcontractor misconduct

• Contractoz/subcontiactor harassment, assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department ofCorrections. I acknowledge that I have been
provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law 108-79—Seol. 4.2003 and
have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, sexual
conduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offenders is prohibited. Sexual harassment or sexual
misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2,632-A:3 and 632-A:4. Ctopter
632-A! Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections. I understand that 1 shall infoim
all employees ofthe Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA. RSA 632-
A:2. RSA 632-A:3. RSA 632-A4 and departmental policies including NHDQC Administrative RhIcs.
ronduci and rnnfidentialitv Information regarding ray conduct, reporting of incidents and treatment of
those under the supervision of tlm NH Department of Corrections. (Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A and
Administrative Rules. Rules of Conduct for Persons Providing Contract Services. Confidentiality of
Information Agreement).

Name (print): Jeanne Robillanl
(Name of

Signature:
ntract Signatory)

Prometioc Pnbtk Safely irith Rwpcet, PipfeubaaOsn, Dedkatlea asd Ceortge as ORcTcan



Tri-County Community Action Program
34 Jefferson Road

Whitefield^NH 03598

603-837-2613

Mission Statement

Mission:

Tri-County CAP is dedicated to improving the lives and well-being of New Hampshire's people and
communities. We provide opportunities and support for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency and

to get involved in helping their neighbors and improving the conditions In their communities.



Tri-County Community Action Program
34 Jefferson Road

Whitefield, NH 03598

603-837-2613

Board of Directors

Officers

Sandy Alonzo, Board Chair, Board of Directors

Brian Hoffman, Member, Board of Directors'

Fay Pierce, Member, Board of Directors

Charles Monaghan, Member, AVH Board of Directors

Linda Massimilla-State Representative, Member, Board of Directors

Richard McLeod, Member, Board of Directors

George Sykes, Board Treasurer, Board of Directors

Ruth Heintz, Member, Board of Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT «oui»o.o. nd.™DOVEE • OONCOftD

STlA-niAM

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated finandal statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30,
2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera! of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibitities of Management for the Financiai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
finandal statements in accordance with accounting prindples generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated finandal statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated finandal statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated finandal statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used ar^ the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates' 2021
financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report dated November 19, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifonv Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated flnanci^ statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated finanda) statements and certain addition^ procedures, induding comparing and
recondling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated finandal statements or to the consolidated finandal statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our ppiriion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 15,2022, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of lav^,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe tt^ scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemsti control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15.2022



TRI^OUMTY COMMUNITY ACTON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30.2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total cument assets

2022

$  3,827,664
977.227

1.807.274

169,196

59.759
138.811

6.979.931

2021

$  3,237,032
1,317,839

1,617,249

216,423
52,985

53.594

6,495.122

PROPERTY

Property arid equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

12,794,151
(6.088,609)

12,917,935

(5.850.185)

Property, net 6,705,542 7,067,750

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 410,431 439,822

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14.095.904 $ 14.002.694

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

134.452

262,473
228,342

81,707

117,415

446,208
1,085.406

$  129,155
4,303

233,907

383,435

266,595

324,140
1,400,645

Total current liabilities 2,356,003 2,742,180

LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt, net of current portion 4.442,866 4.577,505

Total liabilities 6.798.869 7.319,685

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

7.037,337

259.698

6,199,624

483,385

Total net assets

9

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

7.297,035

$ 14.095.904

6.683.009

$ 14.002.694

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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TRkCOUMTY CQMMUMrTY ACTIQM PROGRAM INC. AMD AFFILIATC

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTWITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor 2022 2021

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts $ 32.657,364 $  361,664 $ 33.019,028 $ 18.711,410

Program funding 1.178.528 - 1.178,528 1.177,937

Utility programs 1,662.325 • 1,662,325 2,659,293

In-kind contributions 228,341 . 228,341 364.580
CorttrttHiUora 140,578 - 140,578 462,340

Fundralsing 8,616 - 8,616 1,802

Rental Income 797.438 - 797.436 684,169
Interest Income 484 - 484 886

Gain (loss) on disposal of property 8.874 - 8.874 (27,288)
Other revenue 4,789 . 4.789 13.364

Total revenues artd other support 36,887.335 361,664 37.246,996 24,048,495

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 585.351 (585.351) _

Total reverujes, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions 37.472.686 (223.687) 37,248.999 24.048.495

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agertcy Fund 1,453,842 - 1.453,842 1.017.860

Head Start 2,792,837 - 2.792,837 2.856,419
Guardianship 658,956 - 658,956 760,053
Transportation 892,112 - 892,112 870,078

Volunteer 62,053 • 62.053 98,817

Workforce Development - - - 40,175

Carroll County Dental 673,708 - 673,708 669,641
Support Center - - - 356,359

Homeless 17,630,850 - 17,630,850 4.760,909

Energy and Community Development 9.678.945 - 9,978,945 8,541,527

Elder 1.095,578 - 1,095,578 1,192,453

Housing Services 248,736 - 248,736 192.010

Total program services 35,487,617 35.487.617 21.354.301

Supporting Activities:
General and admtnistrative 1,146,090 - 1.146.090 1,172,988

Fundraising 1.266 - 1.266 -

Total supporting activities 1,147,356 1.147.356 1.172.988

Total hmctional expenses 36,634,973 36.634.973 22.527.289

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 837,713 (223.687) 614,026 1.521,206

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6.199.624 483.385 6.683.009 5.161.803

NET ASSETS, END OP YEAR $  7.037.337 $ 259.698 S 7.297.035 $ 6.683.009

Seo Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statemonts
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TRUCOUNTY CQMMUNtTY ACTIOM PROGRAM IMC. AND AFRUATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMEtfT OF FUNCTIONAL ̂ PENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022

Can

Aaencv Fund Head Start Guardlanshio Trar>SDortation Volunteer

Direct Expenses
Payroll $  491,447; $  1,591,962 $ 460,242 $ 447,910 $  42,414

Payroll taxes and benefits 112.083 425.086 103,479 79,984 8,955

Assistance to cOents - . 89,597 .

Consumable supplies 8.143 167,505 8,474 7,296 445

Space costs and rentals 4.434 194,445 44,378 16,638 5,481

Depredation expense 168.801 50,198 500 108,348 -

In-kind expended 117,498 - - -

Consultants and contradors 94.310 2,132 5,635 13,178 ■

Utitities 191.020 28,064 21,922 16,187 1,597

Travel and meetings 9.14^ 56,464 5,692 27,591 -

Other dired program costs 67.883 52,568 (8.580) 3,699 2,598

Fiscal and administrative 91 294 8,928 622 75

Building and grounds maintenance 135,694 64,895 - 2,111 -

Interest expense 94,838 66 1,031 66

Vehicle expense s.ssrj - - 69,672 -

Insurance 48.46^ 6,338 579 2,627 488

Maintenance of equipment and rental 8,601 35,322 6.441 6,486 .

Fixed fees 13.326 35 100 •

Totat Direct Expenses 1.453,842 2,792.837 658,956 892,112 62,053

Indirect Expenses
Indired costs 144.922 273.225 70,128 75,578 6.163

Total Direct t Indirect expenses $  1.598.764 $  3.066.062 $ 729,084 $ 987,690 $  68.246

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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TR^CQUWTY COMMUWITY ACTION PROGRAM.' INC. AND APnLIATF

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2021

Aqgn9Y Fwn^ Head Start Guardianshro Tranaoortatlon Volunteor
Direct Expenses

PayroU $  420,622 $ 1,590,671 $ 518,354 $ 427.492

Payroll taxes and benefits 114,664 456,654 141,579 66,552

Assistance to clients 31,899 - - 79,632

Consumable supplies 15,085 224,233 9,885 12,768

Space costs ertd rentals 4.975 195,497 42,625 15,783

Depreciation expense 160,408 55,544 - 69,021

Iivldnd expended - 123,709 - 29,663

Consultants and contractors - 6,937 1,370 -

Utilities 135,721 25,761 20,811 14,346

Travel and meetings 1,369 56,943 2,929 22,740

Other direct program costs (36,110) 37,061 1,610 20.399

Fiscal and adminlstrBtive 1,721 1,005 10,788 682

Bdldr^ arxl grounds mainter>arrce 107,973 21.907 130 7,907

Interest expense 96,971 16 449 4

Vehicte expense 2,156 • - 73,565

Insurarwe 49,960 7,079 508 2,296

Maintenance of equipment and rental (56,923) 51,182 9.017 6,986

Fixed fees (30.611) . . .

Total Diroct Expanses 1,017.860 2,656,419 760,053 870,078

indiiect Expenses

IrMllrect costs 130.691 292.769 83.180 78.104

Total Difoet A Indirect expenses $  1.148.551 $ 3.149.188 $ 843.233 $ 946.182

53,155

14,246

6,717

4,664

1,535

162

2.046

1.047

72

13,173

Workforce Carro

Oevtoptnent Q

$  14,240 $

5,268

10,650

53

8,708

1,123

113

96,817

9,042

40,175

Z961

Soo Notei to Consolldatod Financial Statements

1
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TRU:QUWTY COMMtJMITY ACTIOM PROGRAM IMC. AMD AFFILIATg

j
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACnVITIES

Change in net assets $  614,026 $  1,521,206

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
'

net cash provided by operating activittes:
Depreciation and anrrartization 520,221 450,040

Loss (gain) on disposal of property (8,874) 27,288

Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable (190,025) (294,397)
Pledges receivat>le 47,227 90,594

Inventories (6,774) 49,445

Prepaid expenses ~ (85,217) 24,288

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 258,170 (176,124)

Accrued compensated absences (5,565) (9,872)
Accrued salaries (301,728) 334,376

Accrued eiqMnses (149,180) 129,291
Refundable advances 122,068 142,677

Other liabilities (315,239) 549,663

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACnVITlES 499,110 2,838.475

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property 8,874 25,000

Purchases of property and equipment (158,013) (780,217)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTiymES
•

(149,139) (755,217)

CASH FLOWS FROM RNANCING ACTTVITIES

Repayment on long4erm debt (129.342) (523,740)
Repayment on capital lease obligations (3.554)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACUVmES ■  (129,342) (527.294)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 220,629 1,555,964

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4.994.693 3.438.729

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for

interest

$ 5.215.322

95.593

$ 4.994.693

136,425

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statennents
f



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Comerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tr^ounty Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, Sjtate, and local agencies. Comerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Comerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation 'that was
incorporated under the laws of ̂ e State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Agency

Tri-County CAP Adminlstra ion provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program] Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs cornply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which indude in addition to early leaming, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



TRI-COUNTY CQMMUNtTY ACT ON PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO consoudat;ed financial statements
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to Identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development. I

Tri-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment is 217, but
over the course of the progrjam year serves approximately 250 children In
Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-bas^ option.

Guardianship I
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit] program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular senrice area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer j
The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 211 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 41
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences,] and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate

over 20,000 hours yearly. '

Workforce Development

The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.

10



TRI-CQUNTY CQMMUNrTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization Is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unjfied State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce' training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training In the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients' in community-based work experience sites.

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and Individuals. The Center offers a full

array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on iricome ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, trea^ents, and referrals will be made available.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct sen/ice
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Graftpn County. Support Center sen/ices are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They Include: crisis
Intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter, support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.

Homeless |
Homeless services Include an outreach inten/ention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Orgariization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

11



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low'income Weatheilzation

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos Codnty ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports. I

Housing Services

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. (Comerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Comerstone includes a 1;2-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

12



TRI-COUNTY COYMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. C^ce of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major, federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards' applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Unihnn Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Unifotm Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial staternents of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally |accepted in the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash. |

Basis of presentation |
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position arKi activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors. '

I

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets |with donor restrictions of $259,698 and $483,385
at June 30,2022 and 2021, respectively. See Note 13.

!  13



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

I

NOTES TO CONSOUDAtIeD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with dorior restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released fr;om restrictions.

(

Accounts Receivable |
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents anriounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write off
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing j past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation |
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated jdepreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estinriated useful lives of the related assets.

i

Depreciation expense related to | assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program Is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to acJministrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do riot materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred. '

14



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

i

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Estimated useful lives are as follows:
1

Buildings and improvements] 20 to 40 years
Vehicles | 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment j 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The cliente are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances |
Grants received in advance are rjecorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $446,208 and $324,140 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status j
The Organization is a not-for-profit. Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors] The Organization files information retums in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed. '

i

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740. Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum. The
Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associked with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized. {

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization tojbe other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

15



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Retirement plan |
The Organization maintains a tax-sheftered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal (Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning pn the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. Iln January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further infomriation can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods | )
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills arid would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions. '

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equiprrient are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with; explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets| must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are plac^ in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets wi^out donor restrictions at that time.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE
1

NOTES TO CONSOUDAtED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. jUnconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicablejto the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is Included In contribution revenue. In the absence of

donor stipulations to the contrary,jpromises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than

one year after their due dates 'are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. y\/hen a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to netjassets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2022 and 2021. '

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted ip regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $169,196 and $216,423,
respectively. This amount is included in grants and contracts in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codificatio^ No, 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value| because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

[

Functional ailocation of expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basislin the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited. j
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE
J

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting isen/lces based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

1

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee ;and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employes spend on each function as noted above.

'  i -
Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries. '

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll ^taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation, the pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program' and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

(

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefrting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.

insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance 'is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings; andlinsurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees, and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a prograrn.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs] to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. The actual
rates for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately 10.95% and
11.37%, respectively, which is allcwable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expens^ as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $6,696 and
$28,130, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 fias been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2022 and 2021.

Revenue Recognition Policv

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue >vhen the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.

Other Matters

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread continue to affect the Organization's business. The significance of the
impact of these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the
Organization's financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time
that such disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of govemmental regulations
that might be imposed in response to the pandemic.

During the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and through the date of this
report, the Organization has not experienced a significant decline in revenues, nor a
significant change in its operations.
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NOTES TO consolidai;ed financial statements
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

New Accountina Pronouncement

In September 2020. the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-
for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifls-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed
assets or utilities; materials and supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible
assets; and recognized contribirted services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit
organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in
the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets.
It also requires certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial
assets recognized. The Organization adopted the new standard effective July 1,
2021.

NOTE 2. UQUIPITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Ore
and 2021:

anization's financial assets as of June 30. 2022

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, und^ignated
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services
Program

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Restricted cash

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be

used within one yean
Net assets with donor restrictions

Restricted cash, Guardianship Services
Program

Restricted cash

Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year

Amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next tweve mon

2022 2021

$  3,827,664 $  3,237,032

977,227 1,317,839
1,807,274 1,617,249
169,196 216,423
410.431 439.822

7.191.792 6.828.365

259,698 483,385

977,227 1,317,839
410,431

(207.879)

ths

20

1.439.477

S  5.752.315

439,822

(412.665)

1.828.381

$ 4.999.984



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $5,899,000 and $3,569,000 at June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year. !

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current
Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

2022

$ 3,827.664
977.227
410.431

2021

$ 3,237,032
1,317,839
439.822

$A994.693

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30. 2022 and 2021 was $20,069 and $20,059, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years end^
June 30, 2022 and 2021. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2022 and 2021 was $174,807 and $174,755, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2022 and 2021
was $977,227 and $1,317,839, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash.
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $215,555 and $245,008, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2022 and 2021, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $59,759 and $52,985, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2022:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

$ 10,039,601
2,329.022

6,688
418.840

$12.794.151

$4,426,613 $5,612,988
1,661,996 667,026

6,688
-  418.840

$ 6.705.542
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Property consists of the following at June 30,2021:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $ 9,931,953 $4,233,084 $5,698,869
Equipment 2,394,489 1,617,101 777,388
Construction

in progress 172,653 - 172,653
Land 418.840 : 418.840

$12.917.935 $5.850.185 $ 7.067.750

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value Is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

,'s.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$519,334 and $^9,415, respectively.

NOTES. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximurn of 160 hours. At June 30, 2022 and
2021, the Organization liad accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had eamed and vested in the amount of $228,342 and $233,907,
respectively.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT ^
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of
the following:

2022 2021

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per^"^'
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installment due January 2027. $ 80,546 $ 96,062
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, Including interest at 4% per
annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031.

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's intemal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Comerstone Housing North, inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years;
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

2022 2021

261,160 285,268

2,377,169 2,467,774

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

4,586,475 4,716,704
(9.157^ (10.044)

4,577,318 4,706,660

(134.452) (129.155)

$ 4.442.866 $4,577,505

24
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2022 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2023 $ 134.452
2024 139.961
2025 145,697
2026 151,677
2027 148,112

Thereafter 3.866.576

$ 4.586.475

As described at Note 3, the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which Is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021 at 5.75% and 4.25% per annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30. 2022 and 2021. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For
the years ended June 30. 2022 and 2021, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $141,820 and $138,598, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Years ending \
June 30 Amount

2023 $ 99.533
2024 43.884
2025 43.884
2026 42.579
2027 3.512

$  233392

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Professional services and

services for disabled $ 2,479 $ t - $ 2,479
Packing, setup, and delivery
of congregate and home
delivered meals : 55.360 55.360

Total $ 2.479 $ 55.360 $ 57.839

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2021 are as follows:
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021

Head Start

Professional services and $ 11,274 $
services for disabled

Volunteer driver program : _

Transit Total

-  $ 11,274

29.663 29.663

Total $  11274 $ 29.663

Nurtierous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $277,300 and $340,000 for the years ended June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

HeadStart

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate $  58.230 $ 1.800 $ 60.030

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total

Difference between rent

paid and market rate $  115.433 $
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 ,

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions In the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follovrs:

Employee use of home

Donated goods
Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Head Start Housing

$  56,788 $ - $

1,400

52.284

Total

56,788

1,400

52.284

Total 56.788 $ 53.684 $ 110.472

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2021 are as follows; . r

Employee use of home

Donated goods

Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Head Start Housing

$  .147,567 $

Total

,  - $ 147,567

2,385 2.385

56.458 ■ 56.458

Total $  58.843 S 208.410

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state govemments. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
approximately $32,598,596 (88%) and $18,238,690 (76%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state govemments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
impact on the Organization's programs and activities..

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, approximately 67% and^ 68%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was derived frorri the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the future
existence of Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding
policies of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Temporary Municipal Funding $  169,196 $ 216.423
Restricted Buildings 38,084 39,913
Loans - HSGP 24,234 24,403
FAP/EAP 12,079 ' 16,330
RSVP Program Funds 6,255 5,887
CO Coos 6,132 -

Head Start 2,370 -

RSVP - Matter to Balance 500 500

CO Carroll 427 -

CC Grafton 421 -

Head Start - 5,856
10 Bricks Shelter Funds • 17

FAP - 174.056

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 259.698

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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Envimnmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. Iri a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2018 and subsequently, legal actions were brought
against the Organization. The Organization accrued $41,291 as of June 30. 2022
as that is the expected amount that the Organization will be held liable for.

NOTE 15, REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $208,162 and $181,723 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $3,003 and $59,517 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.
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Under the regulatory agreement. Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s Is required to set
aside amounts for the return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2022 and 2021
$4,390 and $3,768, respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are
not available for operating purposes.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, the Organization was required to remit
funds to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 17, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 15, 2022, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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TR'-COUNTYCOMMIJ

SCHEDULE OF EXPENt

FOR THE YEA>

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TTTLE

Fl

U>S. Department of Health and Human Services

HEAD START CLUSTER

Head Start

Head Start

CRSSA-Head Start

ARPA-Head Start

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
CV-Low-lncome Home Energy Assistance
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
ARPA-Low-lncome Home Energy Assistance

AGING CLUSTER

Special Programs for the Aging - Title III. Part B • Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (SEAS) !
Special Programs for the Aging • Title III. Part B - Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (Sr. Wheels) I

Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part C - Nutrition Services (Congregate & HD Meals) i
Special Programs for the Aging • Title III. Part C - HDCS I
CV-Spedal Programs for the Aging-Ttle III, Part C - Nutrition Services (Congregate & HD Meals) I

Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) i

Comrhunity Services Block Grant t
CV - Community Services Block Grant (

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (JARC) i

Activities to Support STLT Health Department Response to PubGc Health or Healthcare Crises {

Sodal Services Block Grant (Title XX l&R) {
Social Services Block Grant CTltle XX HD) £
Social Services Block Grant (Guardianship) £

Provider Relief Fund £

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness S

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
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TRI.COUMTYCOMMUI

SCHEDULE OF EXPEND

FOR THE YEAR

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

FE

U.S. Department of Energy

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons

Total U.S. Department of Energy

U.S. CoiDoration for National and Communltv Service

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program

Total U.S. Corporation for National and Community Service

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Child and Adult Care Food Program

FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER

Emergency Food Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Transportation

Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311)

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Houslna and Urban Development

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 1
CV-Emergency Solutions Grant Program 1

Continuum of Care Program (HOIP) 1
Continuum of Care Program (HOIP) 1
Continuum of Care Program (HOIP) 1

Total U.S Department of Housing and Urban Developmerit



TRI-CQUNTYCQMMU

SCHEDULE OF EXPENC

FOR THEYEAP

FE
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of the Treasury

Coronavinjs Relief Fund

Coronavlrus Relief Fund

Coronavlrus Relief Fund

Emergency Rental Assistance Program

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE A • BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of Tri-Coui
this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uni
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc.. it is not intended ti

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNinCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized fc
reimbursement Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of bus

NOTE C - INDIRECT RATE

TrvCounty Community Action Program Inc. has elected to not use the 10-percent de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under tl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States . the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and
2021, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15.
2022.

Report'on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In intemat control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other RAatters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 15, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Tii-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federai Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be Independent of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibiiities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Govemment Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit

•  Identify and assess the risks of material, noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and ̂
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s intemal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in intemal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Intemal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
intemal contml over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance, Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway. New Hampshire
November 15, 2022
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Govemment Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in intemal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Intemal Contml over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Head Start - ALN 93.600

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Aging Cluster - ALN 93.044,
93.045, 93.053

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $934,818.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel
Guardianship Services

Name Job Tide Salaiy % of Salary
Paid by
contract

Amount paid
by contract

feanne Robillard CEO $132,000 N/A N/A

Randall Pilotte CFO $90,000 N/A N/A

Brenda GaRne Interim CPO $65,000 N/A N/A

Donna Keddy Program Director $59,862 1.25% $750

]a3me McCabe Associate

Director

$48,443 7.49% $3,630

*Based on 2 slots per fiscal year or $4,380.00

Name Job Tide Salary % of Salary
Paid by
contract

Amount paid
by contract

Jeanne Robillard CEO $132,000 N/A N/A

Randall Pilotte CFO $90,000 N/A N/A

Brenda Gagne Interim CPO $65,000 N/A N/A

Donna Keddy Program Director $59,862 1.67% $1,000

Jayne McCabe Associate

Director

$48,443 11.50% $5,570

*Based on 3 slots per fiscal year or $6,570.00



Jeaiwe Ij« ISobillard

TORE STHEWCTMS

Program development, management and administration ♦ Community collaborations
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet fundcr standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting ^
Innovative solutions & problem solving ♦ Capacity building

Professional presentations ♦ Public speaking
Dedication ♦ Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

PROFESSIOIVAL KyPERIENCE

Tri-CoanAy Commaiiiiy Aciion Programs, Inc.
Ckiefi Exccative OCIicer

Berlin, Nil 20IS - current FT employment

Tri«Coan<j Commanily^ Aciion Programs, inc.
Cluef Operating Officer
Berlin. NH 3016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal perfonnance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-Coonly Communilj Adion ProgramSii Inc.
Division Direclor: TCCAP Prevention Services
Berlin. NB 2015-2016

Responsible for four agenc)' programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supemse program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for fondcrs
and agency, develop fundraising and marketing strategics for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service delK'cry;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri-Connty Communliy Aciion Programs, Inc.
Program/Division Direclor: Supporl Cenler al Bnrch Bouse
Ulllelon. New Bampshire 3007- 3015
Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to isupport programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for fiindcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim advocacy-
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local collaborations to enhance victim
services; represent program in state and federal victim ser\'ice initiatives, including presentation of
legislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JL Robillard ♦ 2

Bookkeeper: Women's Rural Enireprenenrial Network IWRENl
Bethlehem* Nil carreni PT employment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri-Coanty Communily Action Programs* Inc.
Direct Services/Volunteer Coordinator: Sopport Center at Burcli House
Littleton. New Hampshire 1997 to 2007
Provide advocacy and direct scrtdce to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and interns; dcN'elop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigns; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Uaverfaill Area Javenile Diversion Program
Woodsville, New Hampshire 1999-2001
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming for
dh'crted youth; supporth'e counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships benvecn the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; communit)* outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institnte-JefCerson Shelter
Jefferson* New Hampshire 1996-1999
Provide indmdual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edacation

BS in Haman Serriecs* Springfield College Schcml of Hnman Services. Boston. AlA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Counseling fDABC Program!
Southern Connecticut Community College, New Haven, CT

AddiiioP^I ,^killiB. Proffcssional Leadership and Civic AfKliatjops
♦ Chairman. Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2W-20/0
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003^ frvuurerl996-199S
♦ Chairman, HavcrhiJl Area Family Violence Council 1993-2003
♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prct'ention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; ladividual Member2008-2017
♦ Bethlehem Planrung Board 2010-2015
♦ Bethlehem Conscrt'ation Commission 2006 - mrreut
♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Gtizen's Advisor)' Committee on Recycling 2007-2010
♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- amtni
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/SwcctJammSwingBand Jazz Vocalist 1997-cumnt
♦ . Member, United States Figure Skating Association/International Skating Institute current since 1993



Randall S. Pilotte

Summary

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include:

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory Fixed Assets
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables SalesAJse Tax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRJ-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. NH 06/2013-Prescnt

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance ̂ als for the Agency and to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $ 18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside
regulatory agencies.
As a member of the senior management team, assists in the fonnulalion and execution of corporate fmance
policies, objectives and programs.
Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,
coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri-County CAPs divisions.
Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the dq)artment; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.
Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP'S facilities. Creation of five-year capital plan.
Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.

Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

'iscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)
Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets.
Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and annual basis.
Maintain proper accounting controls on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled periodically.
Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing
departmental goals.
Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC fMc/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry. NH 03/1989-09/2010

Assistant Controller (2005-2010)

•  Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate joum al entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

• Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

liiterfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
Prepared multi-state sales/use tax retums and acted as point of contact for audits.
Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
Oversaw month-end accruals.

Assisted and responded to auditors* requests on annual audit.
Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversi^t to the Accounting function.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerics on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of v«idor*s invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord, NH 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Frankun Pierce College. Concord, NH



Brenda Gagne
Department Head, Economic Supports

Interim CPO

Tri County Community Action Program Inc.

Professional Summary:

Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020-Present

Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Interim CPO

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St

Berlin NH 03570

5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

Responsibilities include;
Overseeing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northem Grafton and Carroll Counties,

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St.
Berlin NH 03570

7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
♦Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit service.
♦Facility Management.
♦Gathering statistics
♦Quarteriy reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.



*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
♦Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
♦Creating procedure manuals
♦Grant writing
♦Budget preparation
♦Writing Warrant Articles
♦Drug & Alcohol Testing
♦Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village Construction ^
P.O. Box 96
Milan, N.H. 03588
5/1995 -1/2004

Accounts Manager/Office Manager

Responsibilities included;
♦Customer service.
♦Accounting using Quick Books Pro.
♦Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
♦Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
♦Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
♦Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
♦Data Entry.
♦Phone communications and general secretarial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept
P.O. Box 300
MUan, N.H. 03588
6/1997 - 3/2002

Paiks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;

♦Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

♦Development of new programs and year round activities.
♦Producing yearly budgets. i
♦Equipment and materials purchasing.
♦Organizing and supervising a large Volunteer staff.
♦Working with the public to create new programs.
♦Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
♦Applying for Federal and State Grants.



Education:

Graduate Gortiam High School
Goihani NH

Granite State College
Emergency Management

Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses

Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.

Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America
June 2009

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State Transit Conference

9/2007.10/2008, 10/2010, 9/2011, 9/2013,9/2014, 9/2016, 9/2017

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



DONNA M.C.KEDDY

Career Objeclive: To utilize my expcricuce in the Probate Foram to advocate for

incapacitated individuals forthe improv^cnt of their quality of life.

EMPLOYMENT:
I

2003-Present-Tri-County CAPJne. Guardianship Services- Director

Directorship ai^roved by Board of Directors on 4/21/2004

Act ing Director effective 5/13/2003

1993-2003 -TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supervisor

1/01/1993-5/12/2003 • Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust D^rtments, direct

supen'tsion of five financial managers, ie: Estate Managers, Payee Specialist and Benefits

Administrator, indirect supervision of entire program staff as Director*s dcsignec. This position

also mchides carrying an Estateand Thist Caseload.
I  /

1991-1992-TCC/GS Estate Manager

6/I99I-12/I992 - Duties included thedcvdopmcnt of a more efficient system to manage and

account forwards lesources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate System and all

public assistance programs and systems, plus Social Security and Veteran Administrative

systems. Also carried en Estate and Payee Caseload. Duties also included Administrative

Program functions. Direct supervision of estate and support staff.

1988-1992-TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian

11/1988-12/1992 - Dutiesincluded Administrative Program Functions, Payee Responsibilities,

and a guardianship caseload at Glencliff Home forthe Elderly.

1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond IntematioDal Corporation

Woodland Division based out of Lancasler/Groveton. New Hampshire

EDUCATION:

1973-1977 LudlowHigh School. Business Study

Lud!ow;MA

National Honor Society



D Keddy *2

CERTIFICATJONS: Mcinbcrsincc 1988. Registered Guardian.Conference Prcscnicr

National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship

Cenification.

Professional Qualincations and Background:

*Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of Estate,

Tnm. Protective Payee, and Benefit Management Services for state-wide public

guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff guardians, estate and

benefit staff in both Whneficid and Concord offices.

^Consultation services to family guardians and individuals either considering

Guardianship over a loved one or education regarding guardianship standards

and responsibilities both on a fee-for-servtce basis and as a professional

courtesy to the Probate Court and the general public.

'Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) from 1988 to present.

'Certified as a National Registered Guardian through the NGA in 1997.

'Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998.

Topic: The Keys of Estate Management "The First Ninety "Days".

'Selected by Judge Maber, then AdministratK'e Probate Judge, to be on his

conunittcc to produce a handbook to guide, assLst, and provide resources to

individuals that are re^nsible for making health care decision for others.

"Making Medical Decisions for Someone Else: ANrn^* Hampshire Handbook (2007).

'Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/200S.

Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians serving the vulnerable population are held to high

professional and ethical slandardsand have adequate education, training and experience. (Article

in Coos County Democrat July 2.2008). The NH House passed the proposed legislation for the

amendment on RSA 464-A:I0 on 5/20/2009.

'Certified as a National Master Guardian through the Center forGuardianship

Cetiification on 4/1/2010.



JA YNE ELIZABETH MCCABE

Career Objective:

To work fora customer orientated human services organization that enables mc to utilize

a variety ofleadeiship and management skills in a challenging setting.

EMPLOYMENT:

8/98-present TRI-COUNTVCAP.INCmGUARDIANSHIPSERVICES

Associate Director -4/04 to present

Duties include assisting the Director in the overall management of the program, supervision of

staff guardians, training and orientation of staff,

and quality assurance activities. Managing assigned case load.

Senior Staff Guardian-11/02 to4/04

Duties included direct supervision of 7 staff guardians, staff training and orientation, and

working with the program management team.

Staff Guardian- 8/98 to 10/02

Duties included nraking ined ical and treatment decisions for incapacitated adults, working with

treatment teams from a variety of community agencies, and advocacy.

4/83- 11/98 MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC.

Self Determfnatioii and Special Projects Director- 2/98 to 11/98

PrTmary responsibilities included coordination of regional .sclf-dctcmiinatioii project a pan of a

state-wide grant from the Roben Wood Johnson Foundation. Primary focus included developing

a data collection system, facilitating necessaiy training, and identification of systems issues

which impacted the ability of the consumers to exercise choice and control. Secondary

responsibilities included coordination of regional quality assurance activities.



JE McCabe*2

Quality Assurance Director- ] 1/93 to 2/98

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurance activities; coordination of

regional client rights activities including complaint investigation, problem resolution and trend

analysis: and. coordination of regional staff development and training activities.

Director of Regional Residential Seirices- 2/88-11/93

Areas of authority included directing programmatic support and administrative services for

residential programs services 127 indh'iduals within a seven community region: management of

owned and lease properly; negotiating and monitoring subconiracis; formulation and

management of program budget.

Residential Super\'isor- 3/86 to 2/88

Supervision of staffed residences; rccruitntent, training and supervision of private residential

providers; and. coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities.

Various other positions within the agency-4/83 to 3/86

EDUCATION:

1986 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE. Manchester. New Hampshire

M.S., Human Serx'ices Administration

1983 SAINT ANSELM COLLEGE. Goffstown, NH

B.S.. Criminal Justice

CERTIFICATIONS:

Center for Guardianship Certification:

National Master Guardian 4^2010 to present

National Certified Guardian 10/1999 to 4/2010


